

BOXING ASSOCIATION
SRI LANKA



BASL
CONSTITUTION

BOXING ASSOCIATION OF SRI LANKA

BASL CONSTITUTION

(As adopted at the Annual General Meeting held on 28th May 2023)

CONSTITUTION

1. The name of the Association shall be **THE BOXING ASSOCIATION OF SRI LANKA**.
2. The duties, powers, objects and functions, for which the Association is established are:
 - 2(a) The affiliation of all registered boxing clubs and organizations, which shall abide by the Rules of the Boxing Association of Sri Lanka and comply with any directions given by it.
 - 2(b). The promotion, development and control of boxing in the entire Republic of Sri Lanka, and shall give effect to any direction that may be given by the Secretary to the Ministry of Sports under the provisions of Sport Law No.25 of 1973 and the Regulations made thereunder, provided that such direction does not interfere with the Administration or election procedures of the Association or otherwise breach any provision of the IBA Regulations.
 - 2(c). The governing of boxing at all championships and tournaments will be held under the Rules of the Association.
 - 2(d). The acceptance of money subscribed or otherwise obtained and the distribution thereof.
 - 2(e). The arrangement of all such other matters as may be conducive to furthering the objects of the Association.
 - 2(f). Improve the facilities needed to promote and popularize such Sport with a view to increasing the participation of players and to achieve national and international recognition and grading.
 - 2(g) Uplift the standards to the level of international ranking.
 - 2(h) Increase the level of performance of the National Team.
 - 2(i) Identify the talented boxers in every age group and provide support to them in every way and manner.
 - 2(j) formulate a transparent selection criterion to select the players in accordance with the National Selection Committee with due consideration to the selective criteria specified by the Association and the team for representing the country in international or regional sports event.
 - 2(k) Ensure transparency in administration and governance.
 - 2(l) Provide training programmes to increase the capabilities and talents of players.
 - 2(m) Maintain high performing athletes tracking systems by use of players data bases, comprising information about bio data of players, participated event, games, matches, tournaments, teams represented, their performances and where seeding, grading or ranking are given, such seeding, ranking and grading.

- 2(n) Enter into Memorandum of Understanding with the Ministry of Sports for obtaining financial support.
- 2(o) prepare Corporate Plan for a period of four years including the current level of international ranking, expected target within time period and the strategies to increase the level of performance.
- 2(p) prepare an Annual Action Plan for the succeeding year and submit it to the Director General three months prior to the expiry of current year.
- 2(q) Submit to the Auditor General the Financial Statement certified by the Committee within two months of the ending of each financial year.
- 2(r) hold an Annual General Meeting and the election to elect
 - (a) the office-bearers of the National Association of Sports;
 - (b) the members for the Executive Committee;
 in accordance with the Constitution and in free and fair manner.
- 2(s) Table an Annual Report together with the Audited of Financial Statement in respect of the preceding financial year at its Annual General Meeting;
- 2(t) Submit following documents to the Director-General within one month of the Annual General Meeting of every year:
 - (a) Where necessary, bio data of the office bearers elected to such National Association of Sports.
 - (b) A certified copy of the Minutes of the Annual General Meeting together with a copy of the Attendance Register.
 - (c) A certified copy of the Audited Financial Statement for the financial year presented before the Annual General meeting and proof that such Audited Financial Statement has been adopted at the Annual General Meeting.
 - (c) The names and contact information of the members of the Election Committee elected at such Annual General Meeting.
 - (d) Development plan for a period as may be set out in their Constitution including tournament calendar and talent identification programme.
 - (e) A bi-annual progress report on activities of National Association of Sports for Information and monitoring of financial assistance granted by the Government.
- 2(u) Cancel or suspend the registration of affiliates, clubs and other organizations on the disciplinary ground or breach of the provisions of Constitution of the National Association of Sports after a due and proper inquiry held in accordance with the law and IBA regulations.
- 2(v) Follow government standard procurement procedures in respect of procurement and awarding of tenders.
- 2(x) Follow procurement procedure laid down by the Government of Sri Lanka or National Procurement Commission in respect of any procurement for funds which received from locally or internationally.
- 2(y) Enter into any agreement with an International Federation with the approval of the Ministry of Sports to conduct any international Sports events in Sri Lanka unless such National Association of Sports has all funding required for conducting such event.

- 2(z) to make rules to regulate the procedure in regarding to the meetings of the committee of the Association and the transaction of business at such meetings.
- 2(aa) where necessary, to appoint such number of officers to the staff of the Association.
3. The income and property of the Boxing Association of Sri Lanka howsoever derived shall be applied towards the promotion of the objects of the Association as set forth in this Constitution.
4. The use of logo of the Boxing Association of Sri Lanka and the word Sri Lanka Boxing is sole property belong to Boxing Association of Sri Lanka.
5. Any interviews, press articles on media (Social), print, TV, Radio is strictly prohibited unless prior approval is given by the Executive Committee of Sri Lanka.

RULES

PART I - ORGANIZATION AND ADMINISTRATION

1. ASSOCIATION

The Association is established for the purpose expressed in the Constitution and shall be styled THE BOXING ASSOCIATION OF SRI LANKA and is hereinafter referred to **‘the Association’**. It shall consist of affiliated clubs and other organizations and shall be the controlling body for boxing in Sri Lanka. It shall be the duty of every affiliated member to comply with directions given by it.

2. AUTONOMY

The Association shall be an autonomous body and shall restrain any kind of interference from any authority.

3. DISCRIMINATION

Any kind of discrimination is prohibited whether based on gender, ethnic origins, color, language, religion, politics, and other opinion and social origins; whom ever does not abide by this shall be subject to suspension or expulsion according to this Constitution and the IBA Regulations.

4. COMPLIANCE WITH IBA REGULATIONS

The Association and each member of the Association shall always comply with the IBA Statutes, the IBA Bylaws, the Technical & Competition Rules issued by IBA from time to time, the IBA Code of Ethics, the IBA Disciplinary Code and Procedural Rules and the IBA Anti-Doping Code (collectively the “IBA Regulations”). Where there is conflict between the constitutional provisions of the Association and the IBA Regulations described above, the Regulations shall prevail.

5. RELATIONSHIP WITH IBA

5(a) The Association will be responsible for the sport of boxing, in particular IBA Professional Boxing (or such other name as IBA may call Pro Boxing) and IBA Pro Boxing Program (IBA Pro) in Sri Lanka.

5(b) The Association shall create a new body within the association to run and administer the IBA Pro Program in Sri Lanka. It shall fall under the authority and control of the Association and the Association’s President shall serve as President of the Professional Body.

- 5(c) The Association shall not hold membership in or be affiliated to any professional boxing or professional combat sport organization or body other than IBA Pro Boxing.
- 5(d) A person shall not be eligible to be elected as an officer of the Association if that person has held any position (including as a boxer, official, coach or trainer) within, or has been affiliated to any professional boxing or professional combat sport organization (other than IBA Boxing) unless that person has resigned such position at least one year prior to the said election. Such officer shall not be entitled to hold any position within or be affiliated to any professional boxing or professional combat sport organization (other than IBA Professional Boxing) for so long as such person is an officer of the Association.
- 5(e) The Association recognizes the IBA Boxing Marketing Arm as the sole and exclusive promoter of the IBA Pro Program on a continental and worldwide level and shall not associate with any other promoter associated with any professional boxing or professional combat sport organization (other than IBA pro Boxing) for events on a continental or worldwide level.
- 5(f) It is prohibited for the Association and/or its President to be responsible for governing any other sporting activity, including mixed martial arts (MMA), UFC, Kickboxing, K-1 and other similar combat sports as may be determined by IBA.

6. **MEMBERSHIP**

- 6(a) Affiliated Clubs and Organizations:
Any Club or Organization on application set out in Form "A" hereto with the constitution, list of elected office bearers, list of members and request letter which is approved by the Executive Committee may be elected as an Affiliated Club on payment of the requisite fee. Such affiliated Boxing Clubs and Organizations shall be issued a certificate of registration and shall abide by the rules and directions of the Association.
- 6(b) All active clubs hitherto affiliated to the Boxing Association of Sri Lanka and retaining active membership shall continue to be affiliated to the Association under these rules. Following any amendment to the Clubs' or organizations' constitutions, the clubs or organization shall update this Constitution to ensure that it complies fully with the Association's constitution. However, if any particular club /organization fails to field a boxer during the three presiding years shall be considered as a defunct club / organization and should re-register as a fresh new entity.
- 6(c) The Association shall be formed up of:
- 6(c)(i) Registered Clubs - In the case of all clubs and organizations, a club or organization shall be classified as a 'Registered Club' provided however that such club has entered a minimum of five (5) different boxers in any one or more of the major tournaments as defined in Section 29(f) of this Constitution during each year.

In the event of a Registered Club falling to enter five (5) different boxers in any one or more of the major tournaments of any year, such club shall be classified as an 'Affiliated Club' in the succeeding year. In all such cases, reinstatement as a 'Registered Club' shall be permitted only on entry of a

minimum of five (5) different boxers in any one or more of the major tournaments conducted in any one year.

6(c)(ii) Affiliated Clubs- Any club or organization seeking membership in the Boxing Association of Sri Lanka in terms of Section 6(a) of these rules shall be deemed to be an 'Affiliated Club'.

In the event of an Affiliated Club entering five (5) or more different boxers any one or more of the major tournaments as defined in Section 29 (f) of this Constitution during any one year, such Club shall be classified as a 'Registered Club' in the succeeding year.

6(d) Fees - All Clubs and Organizations seeking membership in the Boxing Association of Sri Lanka shall pay an Entrance fee of Rs. 10,000/- . The annual subscription payable shall be Rs 6000/- in the case of Registered and Affiliated Clubs.

All fees and subscriptions shall be paid to the Honorary Treasurer before the 1st day of March of the year in which such sum of money falls due, failing which membership shall be suspended until arrears are paid.

6(e) Disciplinary Action -

The Disciplinary Committee consisting of Chairman, Committee Secretary and of not more than three (3) members elected at the Executive Committee meeting after the Annual General Meeting, shall have the power to inquire in to allegations against any Affiliated Club or organization or member of such club or organization or any boxing official, coach or office bearer of the Boxing Association of Sri Lanka in the event of non - compliance with or contravention of any Rules or Directions of the Association or the IBA Regulations or misconduct bringing discredit to the interest of boxing.

Disciplinary Committee members shall not hold any paid or non-payment appointment in the clubs or associations. On the recommendations of the Disciplinary Committee the Executive Committee shall have the power to warn, reprimand or otherwise deal with or recommend for suspension or expulsion any Affiliated Club or organization or member of such club or organization or any boxing official, coach or office bearer of the Association. The recommendation for suspension or expulsion shall be considered at a special meeting of the Executive Committee within seven (7) days of the receipt of the report of the Disciplinary Committee. Any Affiliated Club or organization or member of such club or organization or any boxing official, coach or office bearer of the Association against whom a punishment has been awarded by the Executive Committee is final.

The Disciplinary Committee shall adhere to the following procedure:

6(e)(i) Call for an explanation from the Affiliated Club or organization or member of such club or organization or any boxing official, coach or office bearer of the Association against whom allegations have been made.

6(e)(ii) In the event of the explanation not being satisfactory, a notice shall be issued specifying date, time and place for the conduct of an inquiry. The charges shall be annexed to such notice

6(e)(iii) The defendant party will be given an opportunity to appear at the inquiry.

6(e)(iv) The defendant shall be given an opportunity to cross examine witnesses if so required by him.

6(f) Obligations of Affiliated Clubs and Associations

Each affiliated club and Association is obliged to

6(f)(i) comply with the requirements of this Constitution and of the Regulations applicable to it, it shall include these obligations in their statutes/constitutions and lay down the necessary implementing provisions;

6(f)(ii) comply with decisions issued or to be issued by the Association and it shall include these obligations in their constitutions and shall ensure that said decisions are legally binding and enforced amongst its members;

6(f)(iii) abstain from any conduct which is, or may reasonably be seen to be, detrimental to Association or to the interests of Association;

6(f)(iv) submit to the Association a copy of its constitution whenever that constitution is amended or replaced and seek for approval;

6(f)(v) democratically elect or appoint its officers and executive body in accordance with BASL its constitution and generally recognized democratic and good governance principles;

6(f)(vi) supply information as may be specified in the Regulations or as otherwise requested in writing;

6(f)(vii) manage its affairs independently and ensure that its own affairs are not unduly influenced by any third party or third parties

6(f)(viii) avoid participation in any Boxing organization or association other than BASL unless otherwise permitted by the Executive Committee.

6(f)(ix) Implement and apply a regulatory framework providing that any behavior of racism and any other forms of discrimination is strictly sanctioned;

6(f)(x) pay all monies owing to Boxing Association of Sri Lanka.

6(g) Cessation of Membership

An affiliated club or Association will cease to be a member of BASL if:

6(g)(i) it resigns its membership of BASL;

6(g)(ii) its membership of BASL is terminated by a resolution of BASL in accordance with this Constitution; or

6(g)(iii) it is wound up or dissolved as an affiliated boxing association in accordance with its constitution.

6(g) (iv) An affiliated Boxing club or Association may resign its membership of BASL by forwarding by post or email a letter of resignation, signed by an authorized officer of the club or association, to the BASL Head Office.

6(g)(v) Nonpayment of memberships fees for 3 years and non-participation of boxers at the Association's Boxing tournaments for 3 years. Such club shall apply for the memberships as a new club according to the constitution.

7. ELECTION AND APPOINTMENT PROCESSES

- 7(a) The election and appointment processes adopted by the Association hereunder and by each Affiliated Club or organization must prevent any and all external interference in the election and appointment processes.
- 7(b) The election process must be approved by IBA.
- 7(c) Any person elected or appointed as Office Bearer who is not elected or appointed in compliance with this article shall not be recognized by the Association or IBA.
- 7(d) Decisions passed by bodies that have not been elected or appointed in accordance with this article shall not be recognized by the Association or IBA.
- 7(e) The Federation's election (or appointments) shall be not be recognized by IBA unless the following information is sent to IBA Headquarters at least one (1) month before the proposed date of the election:
 - (i) Date and place of General Assembly or Congress;
 - (ii) List of nominations for Presidency and Executive Committee (together with proof of their eligibility);
 - (iii) Agenda
 - (iv) List of delegates; and
 - (v) Copy of most recent Federation statutes, articles, constitution or bylaws in English. Such documentation must be reviewed and approved by before any election may take place.
- 7(f) Upon receipt of the above documentation, IBA will review it and make a decision whether or not an election at a General Assembly/Congress may be carried out.
- 7(g) As soon as possible (and no later than 1 (one) week) after the Federation has held elections it shall send the results of such elections to IBA. The Federation shall notify IBA of the identity of all persons who were elected or appointed to positions at the elections.
- 7(h) Failure by any the Federation to comply with the above requirements above may result in the non-acceptance of the election results and suspension of all the Federation's membership rights until such time as a new election has been carried out in accordance with the IBA Statutes and Bylaws.

8. **ELECTIONS**

- 8(a) The election of a candidate as President or the appointment of any other Executive Committee member shall be set aside on any of the following grounds:
 - 8(a)(i) That there was failure to conduct the election in accordance with the provisions of the Constitution and/or the IBA Statutes and/or local laws that the non-compliance and failure affected the result of the election in substantial manner.
 - 8(a)(ii) That a person other than the one elected purportedly won the election.
 - 8(a)(iii) That an illegal practice was committed in connection with the election by the candidate personally or with his or her knowledge and consent or approval.
 - 8(a)(vi) That the candidate was at the time of his or her election not qualified or was disqualified.
 - 8(a) (v) That there was external interference in the election process

8(a) (vi) That there was a failure to comply with the IBA Code of Ethics in conducting the election.

The Association must submit the results of any election of Office Bearers and the organizational structure of the Association to IBA for final approval and recognition.

9. **ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING**

9(a) Date and Place - The Annual General Meeting shall be held once in every year, preferably on or before the thirty first of May each year at such place and time as shall be decided by the Executive Committee. At the Annual General Meeting election to elect office bearers of the Committee of the Boxing Federation of Sri Lanka and the members for the Executive Committee will be held once in two years.

In respect of selecting the members for Technical Committee, Finance Committee, Selection Committee Disciplinary Committee for the official term as set out in the Constitution, the Executive Committee shall inform all affiliated member institutes, call for nominations and make appointments as per the qualifications immediately after the Executive Committee is appointed by the election of the association.

In respect of selecting the members for Technical Committee, Finance Committee, Selection Committee and Disciplinary Committee for the official term as set out in the Constitution, the Executive Committee shall inform all affiliated member institutes, call for nominations and make appointments as per the qualifications immediately after the Executive Committee is appointed by the election of the association.

9(b) Tenure of Office – Every office bearer of the Committee shall be elected at an Annual General Meeting and hold office for a period not Exceeding two years and be eligible for re-election provided, an office bearer shall be eligible for re-election to a maximum of two years unless removed on disciplinary grounds by the Disciplinary Committee. They can only hold on the same position for a maximum of only two consecutive terms.

9 (c) Notice to Members - Notice, including a copy of the agenda shall be given to all members not less than forty days, before the date of the meeting. A certified copy of the Audited statement of Accounts certified by the Auditor General pertaining to preceding financial years, the Annual Report in respect of the preceding years and the list of the members entitled to be present and to vote at the Annual General Meeting shall be attached to such notice. Upon receipt of such notice the affiliated member clubs shall submit the nomination and members entitled to be present and vote at the Annual General Meeting before the end of 14 days to Association.

9 (d) Agenda - The Following items shall be included in the agenda.

- (i) Confirmation of Minutes;
- (ii) Consideration of Annual Report;
- (iii) Consideration of accounts for the preceding year audited by a recognized firm of auditors;
- (iv) Election of office bearers and Executive Committee members
- (v) Election of auditors.
- (vi) Any other business brought forward to the Executive Committee, any other business of which notice shall be sent by registered post to each affiliate specifying the date, time and venue of the next meeting and those present at the second meeting shall constitute the quorum.

- 9 (e) Quorum - The Quorum at a meeting shall be seven (7). If less than specified quorum is present at the meeting, notice shall be sent by registered post to each affiliate club specifying the date, time and venue of the next meeting and those present at the second meeting shall constitute the Quorum.
- 9 (f) Chairman - The President shall preside at meeting, or in his absence, the Vice President, or in his absence, a member of the Executive Committee elected by the members present.
- 9 (g) Attendance - Attendance at meeting shall be confined to only the office bearers and holding office for the current year and the nominated representatives of each of the Registered and Affiliated Clubs. The names shall be circulated amongst the Registered and Affiliated Clubs at least seven (7) days prior to the date of the meeting.
- 9 (h) Voting at General Meeting
- (1) The Registered Clubs shall nominate one representative to be present at General Meetings and such representative shall be entitled to one vote.
 - (2) The Affiliated Clubs shall nominate one representative to be present at General Meetings and such representative shall not be entitled to a vote.
 - (3) The office bearers shall not be entitled to a vote. Provided however, an office bearer shall be entitled to one vote in the event of his being nominated as the representative of a Registered Club to such General Meeting. No club or organization shall be eligible to vote unless such club or organization has been a member of the association for a period of 12 (twelve) months to such meeting. The Chairman shall have a casting vote in the event of a tie.
 - (4) Voting by proxy or letter is not permitted. No representative may be forced to vote.
 - (5) Elections will be conducted by secret ballot.
 - (6) Any decision that requires a vote will be reached by a show of hand.
 - (7) Only the proposals stipulated in agenda may be decided by the General Meetings. However, in urgent or important cases the President may, with the majority approval of the General Meeting, add an item to the agenda for the immediate determination of the General Meeting.
- 9 (i) Nominations
- 9(i)(i) The persons nominated and eligible to hold the office of President and Secretary would be those who have participated in any boxing tournament conducted by Boxing Association of Sri Lanka and Schools Boxing Association. Those nominated and eligible to hold the position of the Treasurer shall be a person having at least one year's experience as a Management Accountant or an Accounting Clerk at a Licenced Commercial Bank of Licenced Specialized Bank, licenced under the provisions of the Banking Act, No. 30 of 1998 or the Financial Companies, Licenced under the provisions of the Finance Business Act, No. 42 of 2011 or the Registered Finance Leasing Establishment, registered under the provisions of the Finance Leasing Act, No. 56 of 2000 or any Company established under the provisions of the Companies Act, No. 7 of 2007 and Assistant Treasurer shall be a person having experience of at least one year in the field of financial management
- 9(i)(ii) A person shall be disqualified from being elected or otherwise to hold or continue to hold any paid or unpaid office or to hold any paid or unpaid post or to be a member of a Committee of the Association or to be nominee of an affiliated club or

organization in the Association,

- (1) if he /she is or has been adjudged by a competent Court to be of unsound mind; or
- (2) if he /she is or has been adjudged by a competent Court to be an insolvent or is a debtor to the Association; or
- (3) If he is or has been convicted in a court of law for any offence and imprisoned for a term not less than six months within past four years;
- (4) if he/she is a person who has at any time coached sports competition for payment;
- (5) If he has during the two-year period prior to the submission of nomination, functioned as professional journalist attached to any media organization as a paid employee or as a freelance journalist in electronic or print media or who is an owner or beneficial owner or co-owner or a major shareholder of a media organization;
- (6) If he is not, or cease to be a citizen of Sri Lanka;
- (7) If he/she is suspended or has been expelled by the Association or IBA
- (8) If he /she is a current active athlete.
- (9) If he has been convicted of an offence punishable with imprisonment for a term not less than six months, either by a court of competent jurisdiction or by a military tribunal;
- (10) If he has held office in the Committee of a National Association of Sports previously and has been found guilty of a financial misdemeanor, malpractice, corrupt practice, breach of discipline or any such offence by a committee with competent jurisdiction appointed by such National Association of Sports, after due inquiry and such findings makes him unsuitable to hold office;
- (11) If he is a parent or sibling of a competitor in that particular Sports in National Pool or National team
- (12) If he has during the one-year period prior to the submission of nominations, functioned as a Judge, Referee or Coach of an individual player or a team
- (13) If he is an agent or manager of a Sports personnel;
- (14) If he has, during one year prior to the submission of nominations, been engaged in selling or supplying sports goods, sports gear or any item or equipment relating to such Sport to such National Association of Sports or conducting sports training schools or involved in providing financial services related to such sports;
- (15) If he is directly or indirectly involved in carrying out the business of gaming, betting or wagering;
- (16) If he is a public officer employed in or posted to, the Ministry of Sports;

- (17) If he is either serving a ban, suspension or prohibition imposed by the decision-making body of the Association or a competent body established by the Association or by the International Boxing Federation or a period of two years have not lapsed after serving such ban, suspension or prohibition on the date of submission of nominations;
- (18) If he has during the four years prior to the submission of nominations had been serving a punishment imposed on him by an Anti-Doping or an Anti-Corruption Tribunal of such National Association of Sports or the Sri Lanka Anti-Doping Agency or of the International Sports Organization or Federation to which it is affiliated or World Anti-Doping Agency, for doping, corruption, betting and misuse of inside information; or he has been subjected to a ban, suspension or prohibition imposed by such National Association of Sports or International organization or the World Anti-Doping Agency.
- (19) Other than the Treasurer or Assistant Treasurer, if he has not participated or represented Sri Lanka in that respective Sports in a major tournament, meet or competition registered, promoted, conducted or approved by the Association.
- (20) If he is being a person who represented the country in an international sports event with the approval or concurrence of the Minister of Sports for an activity related to sports and had not returned to Sri Lanka;
- (21) If he is or becomes a Member of Parliament, any Provincial Council or of any Local Authority

Provided however, such person who had represented Sri Lanka or an affiliated club or organization in the sport promoted by that Association or has participated as an individual in such sport in any major tournament, meet or competition registered, conducted or approved by the Ministry of Sports or by the Association and in possession of a certificate issued to the above effect shall not be disqualified;

- (22) If he is being a member of Election Committee of the Association
- (23) If he being a person who has held the post of President, Secretary or a Treasure of a National Association of Sports, which has failed or neglected to submit due Audited Financial Statement within the stipulated time period.
- (24) If he is a member of the Armed forces who has been denied of granting Commission
- (25) If he is convicted for the offence of money laundering under the provisions of the Prevention of Money Laundering Act, No. 5 of 2006

9(i)(iii) The President and Executive Committee members must be national passport holders of Sri Lanka. In the event the President or Executive Committee member holds dual-nationality, he or she must decide

upon one country they wish to represent and provide proof that it is the country of residence is requested to do so.

- 9(i)(iv) All nominations for elections of office bearers and Registered clubs for the Executive Committee shall be proposed by the President or Secretary of any Registered Club and seconded by the President or Secretary of any other Registered Club.

All nominations shall be handed in or registered posted to reach the Honorary Secretary at least fourteen days before the date fixed for the Annual General Meeting. All such nominations shall be circulated among members, including members of the Executive Committee, affiliated clubs and organizations at least fourteen days before the Annual General Meeting. All nominations shall be tabled at the Annual General Meeting and vote upon.

Provided that where nominations are not received the nominations shall be decided at a meeting of the Executive Committee to fill all vacant posts and such nominations shall be circulated among all affiliated clubs and organizations at least seven (7) days before the Annual General Meeting. Any vacancy occurring in the Executive Committee shall be filled by vote at the Executive Committee Meeting from nominations received from the affiliated clubs.

Provided further that nominations of representatives of each of the Registered and affiliated Clubs shall be originated by each such club or organization concerned and these nominations may be proposed and seconded by the President or Secretary of the same club or organization.

- 9 (j) The Association cannot remain without an elected President for a period exceeding six (6) months.
- 9(k) Every affiliated Club, Organization or Association shall hold an Annual General Meeting within a period of three months of the close of each financial year. Election of office bearers and Executive Committee members shall be conducted biennially.
- 9(l) Every office bearer of the Committee of the Association who is in any way, directly or indirectly, interested in any procurement shall disclose the nature of his interest on an annual basis.
- 9(m) Sub - Committees - The Executive Committee shall have the authority to elect the following sub - committees consisting of three (3) or more members. All acts done by such Committees in conformity with the rules of the Association and in the fulfillment of the purpose of its appointment shall have the like and force, and effect as done by the Executive Committee. The Sub - Committee shall be;
- 9(m)(i) Tournament Organizing Committee
 - 9(m)(ii) Technical Committee
 - 9(m)(iii) Finance Committee
 - 9(m)(iv) Seeding Committee

10. **SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING**

- 10(a) Convening - A Special General Meeting of the Association may be convened either by order of the Executive Committee or on the written request of not less than seven (7)

affiliated clubs or organizations addressed to the Honorary Secretary and specifying the reason for which such a meeting has been summoned.

10(b) Notice to Members - Notice specifying the particular purpose for such a Special General Meeting being convened shall be given to all members and office bearers not less than fourteen (14) days before the date fixed for such meeting. The date shall be determined by the Executive Committee if the Special General Meeting is convened on its decision, or if convened on application by the requisite number of members on a date fixed by the Honorary Secretary in consultation.

10(c) Agenda - The Agenda shall be limited to the business for which the meeting has been summoned.

10(d) Quorum - The Quorum for a Special General Meeting shall be seven

10(e) Chairman - Provisions in Rule 9(f) above shall apply.

10(f) Attendance - Provisions in Rule 9(g) above shall apply.

10(g) Voting - Provisions in Rules 9 (h) above shall apply.

11. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

11(a) Composition - The Executive Committee shall be composed of;

11(a)(i) A President

11(a)(ii) Three Vice Presidents. One of the Vice-Presidents shall be a representative of the relevant School Associations who shall not have voting rights at the Committee meetings

11(a)(iii) An Honorary Secretary

11(a)(iv) An Honorary Assistant Secretary

11(a)(v) An Honorary Treasurer -

11(a)(vi) An Honorary Assistant Treasurer

11(a)(vii) Eight representatives from the Registered Clubs.

11(a)(viii) One Representative each from Sri Lanka Army, Sri Lanka Air Force, Sri Lanka Navy and Sri Lanka Police, as long as they continue to maintain Registered Club status as per clause No. 6 (c) (i) above.

11(a)(ix) School Boxing Association representative (with voting rights at the Committee Meetings)

11(a)(xi) One representative each from following affiliated commissions appointed by the Executive Committee as per IBA new rules. These commission members do not carry any voting rights.

(1) Boxing Referees and Judges Commission

(2) Boxing Coaches Commission

(3) Diversity Commission

(4) Medical Commission

(5) Competition Commission

(6) Champions and Veteran Commission

11(a)(xii) Elected directors of the International Boxing Association (IBA) or Elected directors of the Asian Boxing Confederation (ASBC) will be automatically elected to the Executive Committee of the Boxing Association of Sri Lanka. Such posts shall not have any voting rights.

- 11(b) Vacancies - Any members of the Executive Committee and Committee members who fails to attend three (3) consecutive meeting without a valid reason shall be deemed to have resigned. Any vacancy occurring in the office of President, Secretary or Treasurer may be filled at a Special General Meeting. Any other vacancy may be filled at an Executive Committee meeting subject to ratification at the Annual General Meeting.
- 11(c) Responsibility - The Executive Committee shall be responsible for the proper conducting of business of the Association.
- 11(d) Executive Committee Meeting – The Executive Committee shall meet at least once in every month.
- 11(e) Chairman - The Chairman shall preside at meetings of the Executive Committee or in his absence, the Vice - President, or in their absence any other member elected by the members present.
- 11(f) Office - Bearers - The office bearers of the Association shall be the president, Three Vice Presidents, Honorary Secretary, Honorary Assistant Secretary, Honorary Treasurer and Honorary Assistant Treasurer. Every office bearer of the Committee shall
- (i) be elected at an Annual General Meeting;
 - (ii) hold officer for a period not exceeding two years and be eligible for re-election: Provided, an office bearer shall be eligible for re-election for other one term, unless removed on disciplinary grounds by the Disciplinary Committee
- 11(g) DUTIES OF OFFICE BEARERS
- 11(g) (i) President - The President shall be the Executive head of the Association presiding at all meetings of the Association and the Executive Committee. He shall have full authority of and represent the Association as set on its behalf in furtherance of its specified aims and objects, subject to the approval of the Executive Committee.
- 11(g) (ii) Three Vice Presidents - The Vice Presidents shall act for the president in his absence and in such capacity shall be authorized to perform all the functions and duties of and possess similar authority to that of that of the president.
- 11(g) (iii) Honorary Secretary - The Honorary Secretary shall be responsible to the Executive Committee and the Association for the performance of all secretarial work of the Executive Committee and of the Association, taking necessary action on all decisions arrived at by the Executive Committee or General Meetings, maintaining records and registers as specified in Rule 19(a) organizing and regulating as Coordinating Officer at all tournaments and competitions sponsored by the Association and performing such further duties as may be assigned to him. The Honorary Secretary shall be an Ex - Officio member.
- 11(g) (iv) Honorary Treasurer - The Honorary Treasure shall be responsible for the efficient collection, disbursement and record of all funds as specified in Rule 19(b) and shall prepare and submit such statements of income and expenditure and balance sheets as may be required

from time to time and present at each monthly meeting of the Executive Committee a statement of Income and Expenditure for the previous month. He should also keep an inventory of the property occurring to the Association. He shall be an Ex - Officio member of the Tournament Organizing Committee.

11(g)(v) The Honorary Assistant Treasurer - The Honorary Assistant Treasurer shall assist the Honorary Treasurer as required.

11(g) (vi) Honorary Assistant Secretary - The Assistant Secretary shall assist the Honorary Secretary as required.

11(h) Quorum - The quorum at an Executive Committee Meeting shall be seven (7) and at least one representative of the School Association should be present at such meetings;

11(i) Voting – Each office bearer and member of the Executive Committee shall have one vote. The presiding member, in addition to his own vote, shall be entitled to a casting vote in his capacity as Chairman in the event of a tie.

11(j) Selection Committee - In respect of selecting the members for the Selection Committee for the official term as set out in the Constitution, the Executive Committee shall inform all affiliated member institutes, call for nominations and make appointments as per the qualifications immediately after the Executive Committee is appointed after the Annual General Meeting of the association.

Provided that where nominations are not received the nominations shall be decided at a meeting of the Executive Committee to fill all vacant member posts and such nominations and ratify at the Executive Committee Meeting.

11(k) Handing over Association Books and Property - Every Office Bearer or Committee member who ceases to hold office shall, within seven (7) days from the date on which he ceases to hold office as office bearer or committee member of the Association shall duly hand over such books and property.

Every office bearer or committee member referred to above who fails or neglects to comply with the provisions of this Rule will be dealt with Disciplinary Committee.

11(a)(x) Elected directors of the International Boxing Association (IBA) or Elected directors of the Asian Boxing Confederation (ASBC) will be automatically elected to the Executive Committee of the Boxing Association of Sri Lanka. Such post shall not have any voting rights.

12. REFEREEING & JUDGING COMMISSION

The Chairpersons and 6 members for the Referees & Judges Commission shall be appointed by the Executive Committee after the Annual General Meeting of each year. The objectives of the Referees & Judges Commission will be as below;

12 (a) This Commission deals with all issues related to Referees & Judges. It is responsible for the development and implementation of the R&J Management System that caters for the development, education, certification and evaluation of R&Js.

- 12 (b) It also ensures that R&Js appointed to IBA Competitions are suitably qualified and secures sufficient numbers of appropriately accredited R&Js for international, regional and national competitions by creating teaching tools, tutorial and career paths that will sustain the quality of R&Js.
- 12(c) Ensure that all competitions held in accordance with the IBA Technical and competition rules.
- 12(d) Promote encourage and improve the standard and number of Boxing Referees and Judges in Sri Lanka
- 12(e) Allocate Referees and other officials for the various bouts in each meet organized conducted or approved by the Association.
- 12(f) Promote achieving of international recognition of Boxing Referees and Judges to become members of the Asian Body and IBA
- 12(g) Ensure that all competitions conducted by R&J Association held in accordance with the IBA Technical and competition rules.
- 12(h) Protect and care for the safety and interest of Boxers
- 12(i) Train and improve the quality and transparency of all officials and competition officials.
- 12(j) Prevent any method practice or action that could compromise the regularity or the results of the competitions.
- 12(k) Ensure the unity between Boxing Association of Sri Lanka, Competition officials, affiliated clubs, Boxers, coaches and other institutions.

13. **COACHES COMMISSION**

The Chairpersons and 6 members for the Coaches Commission shall be appointed by the Executive Committee after the Annual General Meeting of each year. The objectives of the coaches commission will be as below;

13 (a) This Commission ensures representation, protection and promotion of the interests of the Coaches. It is also responsible for the development and implementation of the IBA Coaching Management System.

13(b) This Commission also aims to improve access to new training information technologies and produce tools to comprehensively educate and train Coaches over the Sri Lanka (universal integrated teaching system for Coaches).

13(c) Increase the number of Coaches

13(d) Improve the standard of Coaches in Sri Lanka

13(e) Encourage and grade Coaches

14. **ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOXING**

There shall be an Association of School Boxing formed under the auspices of the Affiliated Schools to the Association with a separate constitution and separate office bearers. The aims and objectives of the Association shall be to:-

14(a) Advise the Executive Committee on all matters relating to schools boxing

14(b) Promote boxing among Schools

14(c) Conduct school boxing tournaments

15. **MEDICAL COMMISSION**

The Chairpersons and 6 members for the Medical Commission shall be appointed by the Executive Committee after the Annual General Meeting of each year. The objectives of the medical Commission will be as below;

- 15(a) Advise the Executive Committee on all matters relating to medical aspect of Boxing.
- 15(b) Chairman/Members of medical commission to supervise local boxing tournaments and function as chairman/members of medical Jury.
- 15(c) Medical Commission is responsible for enforcing the doping regulations at local meets.
- 15(d) Assist the referee in deciding whether a boxer is fit to continue, and provide first aid if a boxer sustains a serious injury or loss of consciousness

16. **DIVERSITY COMMISSION**

The Chairpersons and 6 members for the Diversity Commission shall be appointed by the Executive Committee after the Annual General Meeting of each year. All harassment related issues to be directed the Diversity Commission. The objectives of the diversity Commission will be as below;

- 16(a) This Commission deals with specific issues related to the practice, development and promotion of boxing amongst women.
- 16(b) It also encourages the grassroots development of women's boxing, as well as of women R&Js, Coaches, ITOs and Officials. This commission aims to add women's boxing to the women's competition in any international and multisport events.
- 16(c) To liaise with the Asian and IBA women Commission
- 16(d) To participate in the continental, international and world championships
- 16(e) To Suggest the seclusion of women boxers in regional (SAG), continental, Commonwealth, World Cup and Olympic Games
- 16(f) Advise the Executive Committee on all matters relating to Women's Boxing.
- 16(g) To promote, foster and encourage women in boxing at Elite development and recreational levels.
- 16(h) To promote women boxers to progress in to sports administrators and technical officials.
- 16(i) This Commission deals with specific issues related to the practice, development and promotion of boxing amongst women and inquire of any complaint regarding any harassment.
- 16(j) It also encourages the grassroots development of women's boxing, as well as of women R&Js, Coaches, ITOs and Officials. This commission aims to add women's boxing to the women's competition in any international and multisport events.

17. **CHAMPIONS & VETERAN COMMISSION**

The Chairpersons and 6 members for the Athlete & Veteran Commission shall be appointed by the Executive Committee after the Annual General Meeting of each year. The objectives of the Athlete & Veteran Commission will be as below;

- 17(a) ensure representation, protection and promotion of the interests of the boxers.
- 17(b) help boxers making the difficult transition from elite sport practice to a new career.
- 17(c) deal with issues related to the practice, development and promotion of boxing amongst the school / Junior/Youth and Elite and veteran boxers

18. **FUNDS**

- 18(a) Control - The Funds of the Association shall be in the control of and be the responsibility of the Executive Committee.
- 18(b) Receipts and Payments - All monies received shall be deposited within five(5) days by the Honorary Treasurer or Honorary Assistant Treasurer in a Bank authorized by the Executive Committee and all payments exceeding Rs 10,000/= shall be by cheque drawn on available deposits at the bank and shall bear the signature of;
- (i) the President or Honorary Secretary
 - (ii) the Honorary Treasurer
- 18(c) Petty Cash - The Honorary Treasurer or Honorary Assistant Treasurer shall be authorized to maintain a petty cash account not exceeding Rs,10.000/= to be operated upon under the imprest system.
- 18(d) Competitions and Contests
- 18(d)(i) The Honorary Treasurer or Honorary Assistant Treasurer shall have the authority to incur an expenditure of a sum not exceeding Rs. 100,000/= as an advance towards its preliminary expenses necessary for the organization of each boxing meet. Any further expenditure shall require the approval of the Executive Committee.
 - 18(d)(ii) Within one (1) week of the completion of each competition or contest the Honorary Secretary of the Tournament Organizing Committee shall hand over to the Honorary Treasurer all monies received along with a statement of Income under the various items e.g.
 - (1) Advance booking, admission and programme collections, donations, advertisements together with all supporting documents including the ticket counterfoils.
 - (2) A Statement of all monies expended together with supporting vouchers, bills etc., giving details of the items for which payment has been made or still to be paid.
 - 18(d)(iii) The Honorary Treasurer or Honorary Assistant Treasurer shall submit a statement of credit and liabilities at the very next meeting of the Executive Committee and a decision made on the settlement of such credit and liabilities.
- 18(e) Major Expenditure - No individual item of expenditure shall be incurred or investment made in excess of Rs. 10,000/= (Ten Thousand only) without the prior sanction of the Executive Committee.
- 18(f) Financial Year - The Financial year of the Association shall commence on the first of January and close on the 31st December each year.

19. RECORDS AND REGISTERS

- 19(a) The Honorary Secretary shall maintain:
- 19(a)(i) A minutes Book in which shall be entered a record of all decisions and business transacted at Executive Committee Meetings and at general meetings.
 - 19(a)(ii) A Members' Register of all affiliated members in a form approved by the Executive Committee.

- 19(a)(iii) A Trophy Register in a form approved by the Executive Committee.
- 19(a)(iv) A Meet's Record File containing all essential information regarding competitions and meets sponsored by the Association. The record of each meet shall include the following:
- (a) Copy of Entry form;
 - (b) List of Officials;
 - (c) A list of entries and draw;
 - (d) A List of Winners and Runners up and Special Trophy Winners.
 - (e) A List of persons suspended or disqualified or penalty dealt with by the Executive Committee under Rules 21 and 2 including statement of the offence, period of suspension and references to relevant entries in the Minute Book.
 - (f) A List of qualified officials approved by the Executive Committee
 - (g) An Index of Minutes
 - (h) A Register containing all affiliated in the prescribed form
 - (i) A Register containing all particular relating to persons taking part in competitions.
 - (j) A Register of all, Registered and Affiliated Clubs and of Boxers registered by each such club.
 - (k) The Honorary Secretary shall submit to the Executive Committee an Annual Report, on or before the 1st March each year for the preceding year. A certified copy of the Annual Report shall be forwarded by the Executive Committee to the Secretary of the Ministry of Sports before the end of March in each year.
 - (l) The Honorary Secretary shall coordinate the drawing up of programme by the Referees, Judges and Coaches Association and Present Officials for the IBA Examination.
- 19(b) The Honorary Treasure or Honorary Assistant Treasurer shall keep;
- 19(b) (i) A Cash Book
 - 19(b) (ii) A Receipt Book
 - 19(b) (iii) Payment Vouchers File
 - 19(b) (iv) A Ledger
 - 19(b) (v) A Journal
 - 19(b) (vi) A Petty Cash Book
 - 19(b) (vii) A Bank Cheque Book
 - 19(b) (viii) A File of Income and Expenditure Statements in respect of each Meet.
 - 19(b) (ix) The Honorary Treasurer shall at the close of the Financial Year prepare and submit all books of Accounts and documents to the duly elected Auditor for scrutiny and auditing. The Audited Statement of Accounts shall be circulated to all members not less than one month prior to the Annual General Meeting;
 - 19(b) (x) The Honorary Treasurer shall submit to the Executive Committee the Audited Statement of Accounts for the preceding year, on or before the 15th March each year. A certified copy of the Audited Account shall be forwarded by the Executive Committee to the Secretary of the Ministry of Sports by the end of March each year.

- 19(b) (xi) The Honorary Treasure of Honorary Assistant Treasurer shall maintain a register of assets.

20. **COMPETITIONS AND CONTESTS**

20(a) All competitions and contests organized by the Association or by any affiliated members to the Association shall be conducted under the Rules of the Association and IBA.

20(b) For the purpose of distinction there shall be there (3) categories of competition, viz “Novices”, “Intermediate” and “Open”. Only Novices may participate in a novice’s competition. No novice shall complete in an open tournament.

A novice is one who has never won a “Novices”, “Intermediate”, “Open” or other competition equivalent to any of these. Only “Intermediates” or “Novice” may compete in “Intermediate” competitions. An “Intermediate” is one who has never won an “Intermediate”, “Open” or other competition equivalent to either of these. All Boxers other than those who are Novices are eligible to compete in “Open” Tournaments.

Confines of Championship - The winner of a competition or “Championship” restricted to the members of a particular organization, profession or trade, shall be considered no longer a “Novice”.

Confined championship does not include an ordinary club championship or club competition.

“Invitation” competition is limited to clubs which are specially invited to enter competitions.

When invitation competitions which are open to three or more clubs form part of a programme, the programme must clearly define the class of competition, i.e. “Invitation Novices”, “Invitation Intermediate” or “Invitation Open”. The winning of any such competition is equivalent to winning an unrestricted in the corresponding classes.

Team matches, unless confined to the members of two clubs, shall be considered equivalent to unrestricted competitions, and must be defined on the programme as “Open”, “Intermediate” or “Novice” according to their respective classes.

In no circumstances can a competitor win more than one “Novice” or equivalent competition nor more than one “Intermediate” or equivalent competition.

20(c) Entries from competitors who are members of any affiliated club or organization representing such institution shall be entertained only if received through such affiliated club or organization.

20(d) Affiliated members holding competitions or tournaments shall:

- i. Give at least fourteen (30) days clear notice of the date, Place time and nature of such competitions to the Honorary Secretary of the Association;
- ii. At all registered Meets, at least two (2) members of the Executive Committee shall be present.

20(e) Prizes - Prizes for boxing shall take the form of Cups, medals, plate or similar objects suitable as mementos. Cheques or Vouchers or cash.

At all tournaments and championships organized by the Association, a suitable trophy and a certificate will be awarded to the Winner Runner - up at each weight, except when disqualified, irrespective of the number of competitors.

21. **SAFE CUSTODY OF TROPHIES**

The Honorary Treasurer shall take all such actions as is necessary for the safe custody of all cups and trophies, and all property which are the property of the Association and shall maintain particulars in a register.

22. **DISCIPLINE OF BOXERS AND TOURNAMENT OFFICERS**

All complaints should be referred to the Disciplinary Committee. The Disciplinary Committee shall have the power to summon, interview, call for documents and inquire into and take appropriate action as provided in Clause 6(e) of these Rules against any Boxer, Coach, Second, Team Manager, Officials on Affiliates in case of misconduct, unsportsmanlike behavior, omission or commission detrimental to or injurious to the aims or objects of the Association or IBA. The Disciplinary Committee shall inquire and communicate its findings and decisions to the Executive Committee within fourteen (14) days of the receipt of the complaint.

Provided however, that the Disciplinary Committee, if it is unable to conclude the inquiry within the stipulated period, it shall obtain the permission of the Executive Committee on reasonable grounds for a reasonable period of time to conclude the inquiry.

23. **CANCELLATION OF MEMBERSHIP**

The Association shall have the power to cancel the membership of any of its affiliates after a disciplinary inquiry and a resolution at a General Meeting.

24. **MINISTRY OF SPORTS**

The Executive Committee shall furnish to the Secretary to the Ministry of Sports a copy of this Constitution which has been approved by the membership at the Annual General Meeting or Special General Meeting of the Association.

25. **RELATION TO OTHER CONTROLLING BODIES**

The Executive Committee shall on behalf of the Association maintain the closest possible cooperation with all registered governing bodies of other National Sports Associations and the National Olympic Committee of Sri Lanka with a view to the furtherance of sport in the Island. Any suspension of boxers decided upon by the Executive Committee shall be notified to IBA and the National Olympic Committee of Sri Lanka. The decisions of the governing bodies of such sports as are recognized by the International Olympic Committee, the National Olympic Committee and other governing bodies as the Executive Committee may decide, concerning suspensions, expulsions and requalification are binding upon the Association and all affiliated clubs and other members.

26. **CAS**

The Association recognizes the Court of Arbitration for Sport (CAS), with headquarters in Lausanne, Switzerland, as the authority to resolve appeals against decisions made in accordance with the World Anti-Doping Code only. Each Association must recognize CAS as an independent judicial authority but, in this regard, in accordance with the World Anti-Doping Code only. The Association, Boxers and Officials must comply with the decisions passed by CAS.

The Association recognizes the jurisdiction of CAS in relation to any dispute covered by Rule 59 of the Olympic Charter, the Association, Boxers and Officials must comply with the decisions passed by CAS in relation to disputes covered by Rule 59 of the Olympic Charter.

27. **AMENDMENT TO THE CONSTITUTION**

Following any amendment to the IBA Statutes or Bylaws, the Association shall update this Constitution to ensure that it complies fully with the IBA Statutes and Bylaws.

28. **APPEAL**

(a) If any person, body, club, organization or affiliate is affected by a decision of the Association, such person, body, club, organization or affiliate may submit a written appeal to the independent body appoint by the Executive Committee of the Association within a period of seven (7) days from the date on which such decision was conveyed to such person, body, club, organization or affiliate.

(b) Any person, body, club, organization or affiliate who is aggrieved by the decision or action of independent body of the Boxing Association, Boxing Association or an Election Committee of National Association of Sports may appeal to the Minister in charge of the subject of Sports, within one week from the date of communication of such decision or action.

29. **INTERPRETATION**

29(a) In these Rules, unless the context requires otherwise, the meaning and definition of terms used shall have the same meaning as similar terms used in the IBA Statutes and Bylaws

29(b) Participation shall mean an actual bout in the ring in any weight category. Walk-overs shall not be considered as participation at a meet.

29(c) Participation in Boxing for the purpose defined in Rule 9(i)(i) of these Rules shall mean representation or participation as a Boxer in any Boxing meet conducted by Association but not as Manager, Coach, Second or in any other official capacity. Any official representing international boxing tournament will be acknowledged only he/she has participated in the tournament if he/she is approved selected by the IBA. Anyone else will be not considered as represented IBA, Sri Lanka boxing or Sri Lanka.

Participation in Boxing for the purpose is defined in Rule 9(i)(i) of these Rules shall mean representation or involvement as a Boxer in any Boxing meet conducted by the Association/IBA, excluding roles such as Manager, Coach, Second, or any other official capacity. Any individual representing in international boxing tournament will be recognized as official participation in the tournament only if he/she has participated in the tournament and which is approved by the IBA. Anyone else will not be considered as a representative of IBA, Sri Lanka boxing, or Sri Lanka.

29(d) Qualification in accountancy for the purpose defined in Rule 9(i)(i) of these rules shall mean qualify from any recognized institute in accountancy includes ACCA, ACMA and ACA or degree in recognized university or institute.

29(e) Organization shall mean an affiliated and registered boxing Association or Sport Club.

29(f) A major tournament, meet or competition registered, conducted or approved by the Association shall include the following:

- (i) Participation at the National Boxing Championships of Sri Lanka;
- (ii) Participation at a Clifford Cup Championships
- (iii) Participation at a Layton Cup Tournament;

30. **ENFORCING THE STATUTES, OTHER RULES AND DECISIONS OF IBA**

Executive Members, Clubs, officials, athletes and any person or organization connected to the sport of boxing must always comply with the Statutes, regulations, directives, Code of Ethics, Technical rules, contracts and decisions of IBA, as well as to the Code of the World Anti-Doping Agency.

FORM A - REGISTRATION TO ENROLL AS AN AFFILIATED BOXING CLUB

1. Name of the National Association of Sport –
2. Name of the Affiliated Body –
3. Address -
4. Number of members -
5. Name of the members –
6. Names, contact numbers and Address of office bearers with titles –
7. Names and Address of members of the committee

.....
Signature of the President

Name and Address

Date

.....
Signature of Secretary

Name and Address

Date